
REVISED 
Public Safety, Courts & Civil Service (PSCCS) Meeting 

July 18, 2019 
2:00 PM 

Aurora Room 
 

Council Member Allison Hiltz, Chair 
Council Member Francoise Bergan, Vice Chair 

Council Member Dave Gruber, Member 
 

 
Assure a safe community for people  

 
 

 
1. Approval of May 22, 2019 draft Minutes               Council Member Hiltz 
 
2. Consent Items     (None) 

 
3. Police and Fire Turnover    HR Director Dianna Giordano 15 mins 

 
4. Preparing for Non-Traditional   Deputy Chief O’Keefe  15 mins 

Police/Citizen Interaction 
 

5. Teen Crisis Intervention    Deputy Chief O’Keefe  10 mins 
 

6.     Miscellaneous Matters for Consideration       
 
7.     Confirm Next Meeting                    Council Member Hiltz 

 
 

Next Meeting: 08/15/2019 @ 3:30pm – Aurora Room 



Public Safety, Courts & Civil Service Committee Minutes        May 22, 2019 DRAFT 
 

1 
 

 
PUBLIC SAFETY, COURTS & CIVIL SERVICE MEETING 

MAY 22, 2019 
 
Members Present:   Council Member Allison Hiltz, Chair 
 Council Member Francoise Bergan, Vice Chair 
 Council Member Marsha Berzins 
 
Members Absent: Council Member Dave Gruber 
   
Others Present: R. Thompson, C. O’Shea, J. Heckman, V. Wilson, M. Dudley, E. Ortiz, J. 

Schneebeck, K. Claspell, T. Pulliam, B. Good, D. Kaiser, R. Weber, M. Chapman, A. 
Robnett, I. Evans, A. Launer, C. Hill, H. Hackbarth, C. Anderson, L. Gertzen, A. 
Garcia, C. Miller, F. Gray, Z. DeBoyes, R. Cooper, N. Rodgers, N. Metz, S. Day, J. 
Batchelor, J. Puscian, M. Maillaro, D. Carrel 

 
REVIEW/APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE APRIL 18TH MEETING 
 
Minutes approved. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
None. 
 
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
None. 
 
AFR STATION 17 UPDATE 
 
Summary of Issue and Discussion 
Deputy City Manager Jason Batchelor started by updating the committee on the Harmony Development and 
explained the city is working with developer to construct the temporary station. The lot has been selected 
and there are efforts to move forward. CM Hiltz asked if the city owned the land. J. Batchelor explained that 
the developer owns the land and is pending being turned over to the builder for construction however, it is 
not in the first phase of the planned development. The city may move solicit the builder to purchase the land 
if necessary. CM Hiltz asked why the building of a new development is moving forward if land is not locked 
in for the fire station and questioned how a developer or builder can decide they are no longer going to 
dedicate land previously agreed upon but still build houses. J. Batchelor explained the temporary station is 
expected to be built on a single-family lot that is pending release from the developer to the builder. CM Hiltz 
clarified that the issue is that the developer won’t release the land the builder, who wants to continue building 
houses, but is unable to build the station as planned because the developer will not release the land.  
 
CM Bergan asked if there is a need to wait until the area reaches a certain population. J. Batchelor explained 
this station will cover multiple developments.  
 
Fire Chief Gray explained to the committee that staffing for Station 17 is ready to go. Adding that if the 
station isn’t ready soon, another apparatus will be assigned to Station 15 or another Station in close proximity 



Public Safety, Courts & Civil Service Committee Minutes        May 22, 2019 DRAFT 
 

2 
 

to provide an additional resource in the area.  CM Berzins asked how many personnel are needed to staff the 
temporary station. Chief Gray responded that it would take 16 personnel to cover the three shifts. 
 
Outcome  
Information only. 
 
Follow-up Action 
None. 
 
SE AURORA – AFR CALL VOLUME & RESPONSE 
 
Summary of Issue and Discussion 
Fire Chief Gray presented this item to the Committee. There are currently 16 stations open with funding for 
17 stations. They plan to have Truck 16 (the second unit at the station) in-service by August 2019. Station 
17 will open later this year.  AFR has changed their deployment model to a dynamic approach by utilizing 
GPS and Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL) systems. This allows for the closest resource to be deployed. 
They use benchmarks as determined by National Fire Protection Association (NFPA). AFR’s benchmark is 
currently four minutes from the station to the scene. CM Hiltz asked how many stations were meeting those 
benchmarks currently. Chief Gray explained he would highlight that information later in the presentation 
for SE Aurora and would provide the information for other areas after the meeting. CM Hiltz asked if the 
responses times were getting better. Chief Gray confirmed that since the implementation of the AVL 
response times were decreasing. Chief Gray explained AFR has full integration with EMS and Advanced 
Life support (ALS) equipment. CM Bergan asked if EMS are required to meet the same response 
benchmarks. Chief Gray explained that they do not, and that AFR personnel are trained to provide medical 
services adding that 65-70% of AFR’s calls for service are medical related. 
 
AFR’s goal is to send enough resources to overwhelm a fire, which is called an Effective Firefighting Force. 
NFPA standards suggests 17 firefighters on scene within eight minutes for a 2000 square-foot home without 
a basement. AFR has elevated their deployment model by sending 22 personnel. CM Bergan asked if in the 
case of a multiple-structure fire if they would initiate a request for mutual aide. Chief Gray said, in some 
cases that would happen. When there are complex incidents in SE Aurora, the nearest Battalion Chief is at 
Station 10.  
 
Fire Station 13 was built in 2000, staffed with four personnel, including a component of the Wildland Fire 
Fighting Team. The Wildland Unit at Station 13 is not staffed with dedicated members but is instead cross-
staffed with personnel from Engine 13.  CM Hiltz asked how staffing issues are addressed with multiple 
calls for service if one of them is a brush fire. Chief Gray explained all four personnel would deploy to the 
brush fire and another unit would respond from another area of the city. CM Hiltz asked if personnel could 
be boosted to provide full service. Chief Gray explained it would come down to funding and would require 
two additional personnel per shift at Station 13. There are other specialty teams that are cross-staffed in a 
similar manner. CM Hiltz commented that the Hazmat unit, currently at Station 2, is not located near the 
proposed hazmat route on E-470. 
 
Station 14 was built in 2006 and used as a warehouse facility for years prior to being staffed. CM Bergan 
asked why Stations 13 and 14 were built so close together.  Chief Gray explained that there was some 
development in the area that met the benchmarks for population need. J. Batchelor added that instances such 
as these are the reason for the temporary stations and allows development to occur before the permanent 



Public Safety, Courts & Civil Service Committee Minutes        May 22, 2019 DRAFT 
 

3 
 

station is built. Sometime in 2007 or 2008, Station 13 had an Engine and a Ladder Truck that was redeployed 
to Station 14, which means the same number of resources remain in the area. Station 14 and Engine 13 are 
able to respond to many addresses in SE Aurora within the benchmark but it will be considerably longer for 
stations outside of SE Aurora.  
 
There are currently approximately 50,000 residents in SE Aurora, not including commercial properties. The 
forecasted growth could be approximately 11,500 new homes in the next 5-10 years. CM Hiltz asked what 
the target of residents per station would be. Chief Gray explained number of stations would be determined 
by call volume rather than number of residents to keep in line with response times. CM Berzins asked how 
apartment buildings are calculated for response times. Commander Allen Robnett explained that 
considerations are taken within the metrics to project the number of resources needed.  
 
AFR responds to approximately 2600 calls for service per year in SE Aurora, whereas 8-10% of those are 
fire based, 65-70% are EMS related, and the remainder are traffic related or other miscellaneous calls for 
service. CM Bergan asked if Southlands Mall had their own fire department. Chief Gray said they do not 
and AFR responds to calls for service in that area. CM Hiltz added that unmet response times have an impact 
on businesses ISO ratings in regard to insurance coverage. Chief Gray explained that the biggest challenge 
in SE Aurora is the time to establish an Effective Fighting Force and as the area continues to grow, there is 
a need for a third company in that area rather than initially building a new station.  
 
CM Hiltz commented that Firefighters are not people who would not do their job and they will continue to 
respond to fires and calls for services. She hopes council won’t take advantage of that mentality moving 
forward.  
 
CM Bergan would like additional data to determine where the needs are and asked if Medical Support Units 
(MSU’s) be added until funding is available for the additional company. Chief Gray explained the two 
additional people for the MSU would not be enough to impact their response challenges. However, they are 
looking at updating the current MSU program to have them available during peak times to impact other areas 
of the cities. CM Bergan asked where the ambulance units are stationed in SE Aurora. Chief Gray explained 
the private ambulance company uses a dynamic staffing model and float around the city based on predictive 
analysis.  
 
CM Berzins suggested a city-wide analysis of calls for service and resources. CM Hiltz suggested there will 
need to be a structural change to get developers on board to contribute to resource needs.  CM Hiltz asked 
if Falck is still missing response times or are we incentivizing them to meet the response times. Chief Gray 
will look into the data available and get back to CM Hiltz.  
 
CM Hiltz would like a similar presentation for the Fitzsimmons area at a future meeting.    
 
Outcome 
Information only. 
 
Follow-up Action 
None 
  



Public Safety, Courts & Civil Service Committee Minutes        May 22, 2019 DRAFT 
 

4 
 

 
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE  
 
Summary of Issue and Discussion 
Chief Nick Metz started the discussion by providing statistics from the National Coalition Against Domestic 
Violence, citing that nearly 20 people are physically abused every minute by their intimate partners. A study 
of Domestic Violence (DV) homicides found nearly 20% of the victims were not the intimate partner but 
were other family members, children, neighbors, and responding police officers. Statistically, 72% of all 
murder/suicides involve intimate partners and 94% of those murder/suicide victims are women. Domestic 
violence impacts people across all economic and ethnic lines and many cases of domestic violence goes 
unreported. Chief Metz challenges Council to take on this issue as a priority. 
 
Division Chief Vanessa Wilson presented domestic violence by providing the legal definition and explained 
that domestic violence alone is not an actual charge, but rather a charge enhancer or designation with 
mandatory arrest and/or protection orders to prevent the victim from requesting to have the charges dropped. 
Many times, however, the victim will recant their statement or fail to appear in court.  
 
The police department responds to approximately 6,700 calls for service for domestic violence per year. In 
2018, nearly 2,900 DV cases required some degree of investigation and referrals to other Aurora agencies 
such as APD Victim Services, Gateway Court Advocates, and Municipal Court for case filings. Detectives 
investigating felonies must file their cases within 72 hours.  
 
Carole O’Shea from the Police Victim Services Unit (VSU) explained they are governed by the state 
mandate of the Victims’ Rights Act. VSU is currently staffed with 11 full time employees and approximately 
40 volunteers. They provide victim services for both, felony and misdemeanor crimes, respond to calls, 
provide case management, and initial safety planning and assistance. 
 
CM Bergan asked if VSU provided counseling for the perpetrator. Mrs. O’Shea explained that counseling 
is a large piece of the resolution and Gateway also provides counseling. Division Chief Wilson explained 
how important it is stop the cycle of violence and often times the court will order counseling for the 
defendant.  
 
Mrs. O’Shea stated that there is evidence indicating mass shooting suspects tend to have a high level of prior 
DV related offenses. CM Hiltz noted that there have been three shootings involving teenagers in Aurora 
recently. She asked if departments were tracking the incidents for a connection to domestic violence in their 
homes and if the Crisis Response Team is used for some of these calls. Division Chief Wilson acknowledged 
that mental illness was often a result of trauma and that School Resource Officers provide education to 
students related to dating violence. Additionally, VSU staff have the education and training to provide front-
end crisis intervention. 
 
The passage of House Bill 16-1080 made strangulations a felony within Colorado. This is important because 
this will increase the number of felony cases referred to detectives for follow-up and officers are trained to 
determine if strangulation has occurred. CM Bergan asked about the national increase of reported DV cases. 
Chief Metz explained that the increase is likely because more people are reporting and perhaps not that 
domestic violence is actually increasing. 
 



Public Safety, Courts & Civil Service Committee Minutes        May 22, 2019 DRAFT 
 

5 
 

Lisa Gertzen of Gateway Domestic Violence Services explained that they are a non-profit agency housed in 
the Aurora Court House. She explained the cycle of violence and the steps taken after the victim is referred 
to Gateway for service. Gateway acts as the victims’ advocate during court proceedings, provides resources 
and services such as mental health care, extended shelter, and Break the Lease letters. Adding that the most 
dangerous time for a DV victim is when they are trying to leave the perpetrator. CM Hiltz added that Link 
Coalition identifies links between animal abuse and future domestic violence and crime. Also, that the 
Aurora Animal shelter will take animals from DV victims for free when they are housed somewhere for 30 
days or more.  
 
Deputy City Attorney Julie Heckman presented the DV Fast Track program of the Aurora Municipal Court 
to the Committee. She explained that Aurora was one of the first to implement this system over 25 years 
ago. The reason Fast Track is important is because of the pattern of the crimes associated with domestic 
violence and that early intervention is key for the victim, family members, perpetrator, community, and 
officers. Aurora’s Fast Track program includes next business day arraignments versus the standard 30 days. 
These arraignments allow for the defendant to enter a plea or request an attorney to start the process. If a 
guilty plea is entered, the defendant can be sentenced and begin probation and/or counseling assessments. If 
a not guilty plea is entered, a pre-trial conference is immediately held. The City Attorney’s Office also has 
victim liaisons to help them through the court process.  
 
CM Bergan asked if when the defendant bonds out before seeing a judge if they go home. Chief Metz added 
that these occurrences are also troubling for him and in most municipalities the defendant cannot bond out 
until they see a judge, which allows for a cooling off period. Judge Day explained that the standard condition 
of bond is that they have no contact with the victim. Court Administrator Zelda DeBoyes added that the 
detention center makes victim notifications when the defendant bonds out.  
 
J. Heckman added that House Bill 19-2225 was signed into law recently and is effective immediately. The 
changes in law applies to most charges associated with domestic violence cases currently used by the 
municipal court. J. Heckman explained that the City Attorney’s Office has been reviewing the municipal 
code and is proposing amendments to municipal charges to mirror state statutes. She asked if the committee 
is comfortable with having them move forward with amendments for consideration. CM Hiltz asked that she 
email the proposed changes to the committee members for review.  
 
CM Hiltz would like to see how we work with immigrant communities and disseminating information to 
those groups through community leaders. She would like this to perhaps be a future agenda item.  
 
Outcome 
Information only. 
 
Follow-up Action 
J. Heckman to email the proposed amendments to the committee members for review. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
None. 
  



Public Safety, Courts & Civil Service Committee Minutes        May 22, 2019 DRAFT 
 

6 
 

 
NEXT MEETING AGENDA ITEMS 
 
June agenda items include Teen Crisis Intervention and Preparing for Non-Traditional Police/Citizen 
Interaction. 
 
Future agenda items include EMS Calls, Municipal Court Sentencing Reform, Teen Violence Overview, 
and NW Fire coverage.   

 
This meeting adjourned at 3:50 p.m. 
 
The next meeting is June 20, 2019 in the Aurora Room at 3:30 p.m. 
 
 
APPROVED:  _______________________________________ 
  Allison Hiltz, Chair 




































	071819 PSCCS Agenda - REVISED
	071819 PSCCS Policy Committee Meeting Packet
	052219 PSCCS Minutes - Draft 4
	PUBLIC SAFETY, COURTS & CIVIL SERVICE MEETING
	May 22, 2019
	Members Present:   Council Member Allison Hiltz, Chair
	Council Member Francoise Bergan, Vice Chair
	Council Member Marsha Berzins
	Members Absent: Council Member Dave Gruber
	Others Present: R. Thompson, C. O’Shea, J. Heckman, V. Wilson, M. Dudley, E. Ortiz, J. Schneebeck, K. Claspell, T. Pulliam, B. Good, D. Kaiser, R. Weber, M. Chapman, A. Robnett, I. Evans, A. Launer, C. Hill, H. Hackbarth, C. Anderson, L. Gertzen, A. G...
	Review/Approval of Minutes of the April 18PthP Meeting
	Minutes approved.
	Announcements
	None.
	Consent Items
	None.
	AFR Station 17 Update

	071819 PSCCS Policy Committee Meeting Packet
	071819 PSCCS Agenda
	062019 PSCCS Policy Committee Meeting Packet
	Preparing for Non-Traditional Police/Citizen Interaction
	Teen Crisis Intervention
	Police and Fire Turnover






